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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty Fourth Annual General Meeting of the Members of 
th USHAKIRAN FINANCE LIMITED will be held on Saturday, the 26 day of September, 2020 

at 11.00 A.M., through Video Conferencing (‘VC’)/Other Audio Visual Means (‘OAVM’) facility 
to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. st To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements as at 31 March, 2020, 
together with the Reports of Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in the place of Sri. T. Raja Sekhar, (DIN: 02943146), who retires by 
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment as Director.

    By order of the Board of Directors
    For Ushakiran Finance Limited

Place : Hyderabad (Sanjana Jain)
Date  : 31.07.2020 Company Secretary
    ACS:55914
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NOTES:

1. In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) 
th thhas vide its circular dated 5  May, 2020 read with circulars dated 8  April, 2020 and 

th13  April, 2020 (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’) and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/
th HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12 May, 2020 permitted the holding of the annual 

general meeting (‘AGM’) through VC/OAVM facility, without the physical presence of the 
members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 (the ‘Act’), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (the 'SEBI Listing Regulations') and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is 
being held through VC/OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM 
is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need 
not be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA 
Circulars and SEBI Circular through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Members has 
been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members 
will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not 
annexed to this Notice.

3. Institutional/Corporate Shareholders (i.e., other than individuals/HUF, NRI, etc.,) are 
required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body 
Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend the AGM through 
VC/OAVM, on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said Resolution/
Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address 
viz; ushakiranfinance@yahoo.co.in.

4. Members desiring any information/clarifications regarding the accounts or any matter 
to be placed at the AGM, are requested to write to the Company on or before the 15-9-
2020 through email on ushakiranfinance@yahoo.co.in. The same will be replied by the 
company suitably.

5. th The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will remain closed from 19
th September, 2020 to 26 September, 2020 (both days inclusive).

6. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed 
companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from, April 1, 2019, 
except in case of request received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view 
of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio 
management, members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider 
converting their holdings to dematerialized  form. Members can contact the Company 
or Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents, M/s. Venture Capital and Corporate 
Investments Private Limited in this regard.

7. The Company's Shares have been listed at BSE Limited and the listing fee has bee n
paid up to 2020 - 2021.

8. Members holding shares in the same name, under different Ledger Folios are requested 
to apply for consolidation of such Folios and send the relevant share certificates to the 
Share Transfer Agent (RTA)/Company.

9. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order 
of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the 
AGM.
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10. To support “Green Initiative” Members are advised to register their email address in 
respect of shares held in physical form to the company or Registrars and Share transfer 
agent of the company. Members who have not yet registered their email addresses are 
requested to register with concerned depository participant in respect of shares held in 
demat form to enable the company to serve documents in electronic form.

11. Members who hold shares in physical form can nominate any person in respect of all 
the shares held by them singly or jointly. Members who hold shares in single name 
are advised, in their own interest to avail of the nomination facility. Members holding 
shares in dematerialized form may contact their respective depository participant(s) for 
recording nomination in respect of their shares. Members holding shares in physical 
form are requested to convert their holdings to dematerialized form to eliminate all risks 
associated with physical shares.

12. All the documents referred to in the Notice will be available to the members at the 
Registered Office of the Company between 11.00 A.M., to 1.00 P.M., on all working days 
from the date hereof up to the date of the Meeting.

13. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of 
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members 
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their 
Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members 
holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details and also their Bank Account 
Numbers to the Company/RTA.

14. Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial 
Standard - 2 (SS-2) on General meetings, brief profile of Sri. T. Raja Sekhar, the director 
liable for retirement by rotation and eligible for reappointment, is furnished as Annexure 
to the notice.

 Except Sri. T. Raja Sekhar, who is proposed to be reappointed as director and who is 
the Son of Sri. T. Adinarayana, Director of the company, none of the other directors or 
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are any way concerned or 
interested in the resolution. The board recommends for the approval of the members to 
pass the resolution as set out at item No.2 of the Notice as an Ordinary resolution.

15. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this 
Notice.

16. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, 
Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2019-2020 is being sent only through 
electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the 
Company/Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2019-
2020 will also be available on the Company’s website www.uflfinance.com, website of 
the BSE Limited www.bseindia.com and on the website of CDSL https://www.evoting
india.com

17. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted 
for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

18. E- Voting:

 a. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 
20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 
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44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide the Members 
with the facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered 

th at the 34 Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means, through the e-voting 
services provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

 b. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shareholding in the paid 
thup equity share capital of the company as on 18  September, 2020, being the cut-off 

date.

 c. rdThe remote e-voting period commences on Wednesday, 23  September, 2020 (9:00 
tha.m. IST) and ends on Friday, 25  September, 2020 (5:00 p.m. IST). During this 

period, Members holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as 
thon Friday, 18  September, 2020 i.e., cut-off date, may cast their vote electronically. The 

e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Those Members, 
who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their 
vote on the Resolutions through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from 
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-voting system during the AGM.

  The members of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 
thdematerialized form, as on 18  September, 2020, being the cut-off date, may cast 

their vote (for or against) electronically. In case a person has become the member 
of the company after sending of AGM Notice but on or before the cut-off date i.e., 

th18  September, 2020 may write to M/s. Venture Capital and Corporate Investments 
Private Limited, (RTA), email: info@vccilindia.com requesting for the user ID and 
pass word/sequence number. After receipt of the above credentials please follow 
the instructions for share holders voting electronically.

 d. The Members who have casted their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may 
also attend/participate in the AGM through VC/OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast 
their vote again.

 e. The Board has appointed Mr. D. Venkata Ratnam, Chartered Accountant, of M/s. 
Suresh and Babu, Chartered Accountants, as scrutinizer for conducting the remote 
e-voting and voting during the Annual General Meeting in a fair and transparent 
manner.

 f. Members can opt for only one mode of voting, i.e., e-voting in view of the COVID-
19 pandemic and members may refer to the detailed procedure on e-voting as 
mentioned here under:

 Please follow all the steps from S. No. (i) to S. No. (xx) to cast vote.

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically – remote evoting are as under:

i. rdThe e-voting period will commence on Wednesday, the 23  September, 2020 (09:00 hrs) 
thand will end on Friday, 25  September, 2020 (17.00 hrs). During this period shareholders’ 

of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on 
ththe cut-off date (record date) i.e., 18  September, 2020 may cast their vote electronically. 

The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.
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ii. Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to 
vote during the meeting.

iii. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

iv. Click on Shareholders module.

v. Now Enter your User ID

 a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID.

 b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID.

 c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered 
with the Company.

i. OR

ii. Alternatively, if you are registered for CDSL’s EASI/EASIEST e-services, you can log-in 
at https://www.cdslindia.com from Login - Myeasiusing your login credentials. Once you 
successfully log-in to CDSL’s EASI/EASIEST e-services, click on e-Voting option and 

proceed directly to cast your vote electronically.

vi. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

vii. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and 
voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

viii. If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN
Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax 
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as 
physical shareholders)
Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/
Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence 
number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Bank Details
OR Date of Birth (DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy 
format) as recorded in your demat account or in the company 
records in order to login.
If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company 
please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank 
details field as mentioned in instruction (v).

ix. After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

x. Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection 
screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password 
Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password 
in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the 
demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible 
to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly 
recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care 
to keep your password confidential.
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xi. For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting 
on  the resolutions contained in this Notice.

xii. Click on the EVSN for the relevant Company, Ushakiran Finance Limited on which you 
choose to vote.

xiii. On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same 
the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES 
implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the 
Resolution.

xiv. Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution 
details.

xv. After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A 
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to 
change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

xvi. Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 
vote.

xvii. You can also take a print out of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option 
on the Voting page.

xviii. If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then enter the User ID and the 
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted 
by the system.

xix. Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting. The m-Voting 
app can be downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted 
by the mobile app while Remote Voting on your mobile.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT 
REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR 
E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE:

1. For Physical shareholders - please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of 
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by 
email to Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders - please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary 
ID or NSDL-16 digit DPID + CLID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account 
statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to Company/RTA email id.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM 
ARE AS UNDER:

1. Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM 
through the CDSL e-Voting system. Shareholders may access the same at https://
www.evotingindia.com under shareholders/members login by using the remote e-voting 
credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in shareholder/members login where 
the EVSN of Company will be displayed.
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2. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops/IPads for better 
experience.

3. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good 
speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through 
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to 
Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi 
or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting 
may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 10 
days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email 
id, mobile number at ushakiranfinance@yahoo.co.in. The shareholders who do not wish 
to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance10   days
prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, 
mobile number at ushakiranfinance@yahoo.co.in. These queries will be replied to by the 
company suitably by email.

6. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed 
to express their views/ask questions during the meeting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM ARE AS 
UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 
above for Remote e-voting.

2. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and 
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise 
not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available 
during the AGM.

3. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM 
and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM 
facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the 
facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the 
meeting.

4. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the 
AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

(xx) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians

. Non-Individual shareholders (i.e., other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.,) and Custodian 
are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the ‘Corporates’ 
module.

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should 
be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin 
login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which 
they wish to vote on.

.

.
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 The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.
com and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have 
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system 
for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board 
Resolution/Authority letter etc., together with attested specimen signature of the duly 
authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company 
at the email address ushakiranfinance@yahoo.co.in, if they have voted from individual 
tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the 
same.

 If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the e-Voting 
System, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual 
available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk.
evoting@cdslindia.com or contact Mr. Nitin Kunder (022-23058738) or Mr. Mehboob 
Lakhani (022-23058543) or Mr. Rakesh Dalvi (022-23058542).

 All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed 
to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL), Central Depository Services (India) Limited, "A" 

thWing, 25  Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower 
Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
call on 022-23058542/43.

Other Instructions

1. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count 
the votes cast at the AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting 
and make, not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s 
Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person 
authorized by him in writing.

2. The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s 
website www.uflfinance.com and on the website of CDSL i.e., www.evotingindia.com. 
The Company shall simultaneously forward the results to BSE Limited, where the shares 
of the Company are listed.

3. Subject to the receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to 
thbe passed on the date of the Annual General Meeting i.e., on 26  September, 2020.

    By order of the Board of Directors
    For Ushakiran Finance Limited

Place : Hyderabad (Sanjana Jain)
Date  : 31.07.2020 Company Secretary
    ACS:55914

.

.

.
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ANNEXURE

Details of Directors/KMP’s seeking appointment and / or re-appointment at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting (as per Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 
and Secretarial Standard – 2 (SS-2).

Particulars Director

Name T. Raja Sekhar

Date of Birth 21/12/1982

Nationality Indian

Age 37 years

Date of first appointment 10/07/2018

DIN 02943146

Experience

At present he is working as Executive Director 
of Sigachi Laboratories Limited. Earlier he has 

worked at USA for about 1 year and 2 years
in India in software companies. He has also 
worked in a granite company for about 4 years.

No. of equity shares held in the 
stCompany (as on 31  March, 2020)

15,000

Qualifications B.E., MS (USA).

Directorships other Public 
Companies
(excluding Foreign, Private and
Section. 8 Companies)

Sigachi Laboratories Ltd.,

Membership/Chairmanship of 
Committees of other Public 
Companies

--

Relationships, if any, between 
Directors inter- se

Son of Mr.
T. Adinarayana, Director

Remuneration Sought to be paid per 
annum --

Remuneration last drawn per annum
--

Terms and conditions of 
reappointment

Liable to retire by rotation

Number of board meetings attended 
during the year

6
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

To

The Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Thirty Fourth Annual Report on the business 
of your company, together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year 

st ended 31 March, 2020 along with Auditors’ Report thereon.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019

Gross income 11.93 27.50

Profit /(Loss) before Depreciation, Finance Costs
and Tax

(9.27) 0.19

Add/(Less):

Depreciation 0.12 0.40

Finance costs -- --

Profit/(Loss) before tax (9.39) (0.21)

Current Tax - 1.33

Deferred Tax 0.11 0.03

Net Profit/(Loss) (9.50) (1.57)

2. OPERATING RESULTS
Your company has generated total Gross Income of Rs.11.93 Lakhs during the financial year 
2019-2020 as against Rs. 27.50 Lakhs during the financial year 2018-2019 and has incurred 
a loss of Rs.9.50 Lakhs as against loss of Rs. 1.57 Lakhs respectively as per Ind As.

3. DIVIDEND
With a view to conserve resources for long term needs of the Company, your directors do not 
recommend any dividend for the Financial Year 2019-2020.

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVE
The Company did not transfer any amount to the General Reserve for the Financial Year 

stended 31  March, 2020.

5. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS
During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the 
Company.
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6. CHANGES IN THE SHARE CAPITAL
stThe paid up share capital of the company as on 31  March, 2020 is Rs.2,54,45,000/- consisting 

of 25,44,500 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each. During the year under review, the company has 
not issued any fresh shares.

7. DIRECTORS
During the year under review, Sri. T. Raja Sekhar, Director will retire at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends 
his re-appointment.

All the Independent Directors of your Company have given declarations under Section 149 
(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down 
under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under and also 
as per applicable regulations of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. Further, they have also 
confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstances or situations, which exist or may be 
reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge the duties with an 
independent judgment and without any external influence.

None of the Directors are disqualified from being appointed or holding office as Directors, as 
stipulated under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

8. BOARD MEETINGS
During the financial year 2019-2020, Six Board Meetings were properly convened and held 

th th th th thon 4  May, 2019, 27  May, 2019, 14  August, 2019, 14  November, 2019, 14  February, 
th2020 and 11  March, 2020. The maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 

120 days.

9. BOARD EVALUATION
One of the key functions of the Board is to monitor and review the board evaluation framework. 
The Board works with the nomination and remuneration committee to lay down the evaluation 
criteria for the performance of executive / non-executive / independent directors through a 
peer-evaluation excluding the director being evaluated through a Board effectiveness survey. 
The questionnaire of the survey is a key part of the process of reviewing the functioning and 
effectiveness of the Board and for identifying possible paths for improvement. Each Board 
member is requested to evaluate the effectiveness of the Board dynamics and relationships, 
information flow, decision-making of the directors, relationship to stakeholders, company 
performance, company strategy, and the effectiveness of the whole Board and its various 
committees on a scale of one to five. Feedback on each director is encouraged to be provided 
as part of the survey. Independent directors have three key roles: governance, control and 
guidance.

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors 
including the Chairman of the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of 
engagement and contribution, independence of judgment, safeguarding the interests of the 
Company and its minority shareholders etc., The performance evaluation of the Independent 
Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairman 
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and the Non-Independent Directors and the Manager was carried out by the Independent 
Directors.

10. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
thDuring the year under review, Ms. Shriya Jain, has resigned on 30  April, 2019 as Whole time 

company secretary and compliance officer of the company and the company has appointed 
Mrs. Sanjana Jain as whole time Company Secretary and Compliance officer of the company 

thon 4  May, 2019.

Mrs. B. Rama Devi has resigned as Chief Financial Officer on 29-2-2020 and Mr. T. Ramesh 
stBabu has been appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the company with effect from 1  March, 

2020 and Mr. Omprakash Koyalkar is the Manager of the Company. The Board designated 
them as Key Managerial personnel of the Company under the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013. There were no other changes in the office of Key Managerial personnel of the 
company.

11. NAMES OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME/CEASED TO BE SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR
The Company did not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the year.

12. FIXED DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any Fixed Deposits and as such no principal or interest was 
outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet.

13. SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS
There are no significant material orders passed by the regulators or courts which would 
impact going concern status and its operations in future.

14. ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Company has in place proper and adequate internal control systems commensurate with 
the nature of its business and size and complexity of its operations. Internal control systems 
comprising of policies and procedures designed to ensure reliability of financial reporting, 
timely feedback on achievement of operational and strategic goals, compliance with policies, 
procedures, applicable laws and regulations. The Company is following all the applicable 
Accounting Standards for properly maintaining the books of accounts and reporting financial 
statements. The Audit committee actively reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Internal Financial control and suggests the improvements for the same.

15. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134 (3) (c) and read with Section 134 (5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, in respect of Directors' responsibility statement, Your Directors state 
that:

(i) stIn the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31  March, 2020, 
the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation 
relating to material departures;
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(ii) Appropriate accounting policies had been selected and applied them consistently and 
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 

stfair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year 31  March, 
2020 and of the Loss of the Company for that period;

(iii) Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) The annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

(v) Internal financial controls have been laid down to be followed by the company 
and  that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectivel y,
and

(vi) That proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

16. AUDITORS
M/s. Niranjan & Narayan, Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad were appointed as statutory 

stauditors of the Company for a period of 5 years at the 31  Annual General Meeting held on 
th th29  September, 2017 and will hold office till the conclusion of 36  Annual General Meeting.

The requirement for the annual ratification of auditors’ appointment at the AGM has been 
omitted pursuant to Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 notified on May 7, 2018.

17. AUDITORS’ REPORT
There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by M/s. Niranjan & 
Narayan, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors in their report for the Financial Year 

stended 31  March, 2020.

The Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Audit Committee of the 
Company under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the year 
under review.

18. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS
Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has 
appointed M/s. P.S. Rao & Associates a firm of Practicing Company Secretaries to undertake 
the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit report for the financial year 2019-
2020 is annexed herewith as Annexure - I to this Report.

19. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by M/s. P.S. Rao & 

st Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries in their report for the financial year ended 31
March, 2020.

20. INTERNAL AUDITORS
The Board on the recommendations of the Audit Committee has appointed M/s. Suresh and 
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Babu, Chartered Accountants as internal auditors of the Company. The Internal Auditors are 
submitting the reports regularly.

21. AUDIT COMMITTEE
The audit committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 
18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015  readwith 
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

stThe following is the composition of Audit Committee as at 31  March, 2020:

1. Mr. P.R.K. Murthy, Chairman

2. Mrs. S. Jhansi Kumari

3. Mr. T. Raja Sekhar

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee of the Company have been considered 
and accepted by the Board of Directors of the Company.

22. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
stThe following is the constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee as at 31  

March, 2020:

1. Mr. P.R.K. Murthy, Chairman

2. Mrs. S. Jhansi Kumari

3. Mr. T. Raja Sekhar

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted to recommend a policy 
of the company on directors’ appointment and remuneration, including criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of director and other matters and to frame 
proper systems for identification, appointment of Directors and KMPs, Payment of remuneration 
to them and evaluation of their performance and to recommend the same to the board from 
time to time and any other function as may be mandated by the Board or stipulated by the 
Companies Act, 2013, SEBI, Stock Exchanges or any other regulatory authorities from time 
to time. The policy is also posted on the company’s website www.uflfinance.com.

23. STAKE HOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
stThe following is the composition of Stake Holders Relationship Committee as at 31  March, 

2020:

1. Mr. P.R.K. Murthy, Chairman

2. Mrs. S. Jhansi Kumari

3. Mr. T. Adinarayana

The Committee focuses on shareholders’ grievances and strengthening of investor relations. 
The committee looks after the services of the Registrars and share transfer agents and 
recommends measures for providing efficient services to investors. The Committee specifically 
looks into investor complaints like transfer/transmission/transposition of shares, and other 

strelated issues. There were no complaints pending for redressal as at 31  March, 2020.
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24. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The Company was not required to constitute Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
Committee as the company has not met any of the thresholds mentioned in section 135 
of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year under review. Hence reporting about 
the policy on Corporate Social Responsibility and initiatives taken are not applicable to the 
company.

25. MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
thThe Independent Directors of the company have met separately on 11  March, 2020 inter-alia, 

reviewed the performance of the Chairman, Non Independent Directors and Manager. The 
Independent Directors in the said meeting also assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness 
of flow of information between the Company Management and the Board to effectively and 
reasonably perform its duties.

26. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
The Company has developed and is implementing a risk management policy which includes 
the identification therein of elements of risk, which in the opinion of the board may threaten 
the existence of the Company.

27. VIGIL MECHANISM FOR DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY
Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable Regulations 
of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, a Vigil Mechanism for directors and employees to report 
genuine concerns has been established.

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement, 
if any, in the Company. The Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower policy may be accessed on the 
Company’s website at www.uflfinance.com.

28. OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered in this regard. The 
following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during 
the Calendar year:

• No.  of complaints received:  Nil

• No.  of complaints disposed off:  Nil

29. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 are annexed 
herewith as Annexure - II.

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSA CTIONS
As a matter of policy, your company carries out transactions with related parties on an arms-
length basis. Disclosures as required under form AOC-2 are annexed herewith as Annexure 
– III and also contained in Notes to Financial Statements. There are no materially significant 
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related party transactions made by the company with promoters, directors, key managerial 
personnel which may have a potential conflict with the interests of the company at large, 
except payment of remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel. The policy on the related party 
transactions is also posted at the Company’s website www.uflfinance.com.

31. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS
The Company being a non banking finance company registered with Reserve Bank of India, it 
mainly deals in the business of Investments and financing activities, is exempt from complying 
with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the disclosures 
of the loans given and Investments made as required under the aforesaid section have not 
been given in this report. However, information regarding loans and investments are detailed 
in the notes to the financial statements.

32. LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES
Your company shares are listed with the BSE Limited. The listing fee has been paid for the 
financial year 2020-2021.

33. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Since the paid up capital of the company is less than Rs.10 Crores and the net worth 
of the Company is less than Rs.25 Crores, the provisions of Regulations 17, 18, 
19,20,21,22,23,24,25,26,27, and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation 2 of Regulation 46 and 
para C, D & E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, are not applicable to the Company, hence 
corporate governance report has not been enclosed to directors report.

34. INSIDER TRADING REGULATIONS
The Company has adopted an ‘Internal Code of Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and 
Reporting of Trades by Insiders (“the Code”) in accordance with the SEBI (Prohibition of 
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (The PIT Regulations).

The Code is applicable to all Directors and such Designated Employees and other connected 
persons who are expected to have access to unpublished price sensitive information relating 
to the Company. The Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer for monitoring adherence 
to the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

The Company has also formulated ‘The Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure 
of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI)’ in compliance with the PIT Regulations. 
This Code is displayed on the Company’s website viz., www.uflfinance.com.

35. DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE OF CODE OF CONDUCT
The Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (the Code) which applies 
to all the employees and Directors of the Company. Under the Code, it is the responsibility of 
all the employees and directors to familiarize themselves with the code and comply with its 
standards and that the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company 
have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the year 2019-2020. 
A Declaration in this regard is herewith attached as Annexure VII.
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36. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
a. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS:
Your company is essentially an investment and finance company and registered with the 
Reserve Bank of India under the category of Non-Systematically Important Non-Deposit 
taking NBFC i.e., Non-Deposit taking NBFC with assets less than Rs. 100 crores. In the 
advent of Covid 19 Pandemic, the RBI’s moratorium measures for customers is likely to put 
additional stress on many NBFCs. There is an asymmetry. On one hand, NBFCs have to 
offer such moratoriums to their customers; while on the other, their market borrowings must 
be repaid on due dates.

b. OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS:
As the pandemic has spread across the globe, the adverse impact of COVID-19 has 
overshadowed global macroeconomic outlook. Several multilateral agencies have projected 
recession for the global economy in the calendar year 2020 with the IMF (International Monetary 
Fund) warning of the global recession. The nature of lockdown observed in India is amongst 
the strictest in the world, considering the domestic policy space to control its negative impact 
is limited. The consequent steeper decline in economic activities could adversely affect credit 
intermediaries and financial markets. Moreover, the broad-based economic slowdown will put 
pressure on the asset quality of lender.

The biggest opportunity for the Indian financial system today is the Indian consumer. 
Demographic shifts in terms of income levels and cultural shifts in terms of lifestyle aspirations 

are changing the profile of the Indian consumer. Your Company being an investment Company 
seeks opportunities in the capital market. The volatility in stock indices in the financial year 
under report represents both an opportunity and challenge for the Company. Further the 
impact of stress in the NBFC sector spills over to this year as well, it may lead to lower credit 
off take from NBFCs, which may dampen growth in consumption spending.

Phasing out of lockdown/social distancing measures at a slower pace coupled with relatively 
tepid policy response may result in recession in the Financial Year 2020-2021. The most 
significant threat for any lending activity is to constantly exhibit operational excellence and 
contain the loss and mitigate the risks.

c. FUTURE OUTLOOK:
NBFCs are facing liquidity crisis and various risks due to the COVID-19 pandemic which 
led disruptions and have severely affected the fiscal arithmetic of both Union and State 
Government. In fact many corporates were dragged to NCLT under Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code which clearly manifests the stress the corporates are facing. Further, improvements 
in the capital markets may also positively impact the finance and investment companies. 
However, the continued deterioration in assets quality and NPA’S are haunting the finance 
companies.

d. RISKS & CONCERNS:
In the normal course of business, finance and investment companies are exposed to various 
risks, namely, Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk, besides other residual risks 
such as Liquidity Risk, Interest Rate Risk, Strategic Risk etc., any company which is in the 
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business of lending, the entire proposition of the Company (providing finance to various 
segments of the economy) is on the fundamentals of managing the risk rather than avoiding 
it. Further the risk of market fluctuation will be a major risk associated with the company.

e. INTERNAL CONTROL:
The company has in place adequate internal financial control system. The Company’s internal 
control systems, including internal financial controls, are commensurate with the nature of its 
business and the size and complexity of its operations and same are adequate and operating 
effectively. The Audit Committee reviews adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s 
internal control system including internal financial control.Your company has taken proper 
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records as required by various statutes.

f. PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS:
During the year 2019-2020, the company has earned gross income of Rs.11.93 Lakhs and 
incurred a net loss of Rs.9.50 Lakhs.

g. HUMAN RESOURCES:
The current activities of the company may not require significant human resource, however to 
the extent possible requisite personnel have been engaged to take care of organization need 
of human resources. Accordingly, your company attributes importance to human resource 
development activities.

h. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:
The statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's 
objects, projections, estimates, expectations may be construed as "forward-looking" 
statements within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations and such forward 
looking statements involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially from 
those expressed in this statement. Important factors that could influence the Company’s 
operations include fluctuations in the capital markets, repayments by the borrowers, changes 
in government regulations, tax laws, economic developments within the country and other 
factors such as litigation and industrial relations. The Company undertakes no obligation 
to publicly update or revise any forward looking statements, whether as a result of new 
information, future events, or otherwise. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance 
on these forward looking statements.

37. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT GO
The Company has not engaged in any manufacturing activity and thus its operations are 
not energy intensive. However, adequate measures are always taken to ensure optimum 
utilization and maximum possible saving of energy.

There were no Foreign Exchange earnings and out go during the year.

38. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
The information required pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
in respect of employees of the company is herewith annexed as Annexure - VI.
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In terms of Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company does not have any employee who is employed 

throughout the financial year and in receipt of remuneration of Rs.102 Lakhs or more, or 

employees who are employed for a part of the year and in receipt of Rs.8.50 Lakhs or more 

per month.

39. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 

OF THE COMPANY
There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of 

the company which occurred during and between the end of the financial year to which the 

financial statements relate and the date of this report.

40. IMPACT OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC

The COVID-19 pandemic has caused a huge disruption creating an unprecedented impact 

on the financial well-being of nations, corporations and individuals. The immediate impact on 

the business due to closure of offices coupled with transportation issues resulted in halting 

of advancing loans and collection of Principle and interest on loans since the last week of 
stMarch 2020. The carrying value of the company's Investments as at 31  March, 2020, have 

been effected by the severity and duration of the outbreak; however the Company believes 

that it has taken into account all the possible impact of known events arising out of Covid-

19 pandemic in the preparation of financial results resulting out of fair valuation of these 
investments. The Loans have also been subjected to impairment losses.

The impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date 

of approval of these financial results and the Company will continue to closely monitor any 

material changes and future economic conditions.

41. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government 

under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

42. TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

During the year under review the company does not have any amount of unclaimed and 

unpaid dividend which is required to be transferred to the IEPF.

43. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED SHARES TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION 

FUND
During the year under review, the company does not have any unclaimed shares that are 

required to be transferred to the Demat Account of the IEPF Authority.

44. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your Company complies with all applicable mandatory Secretarial Standards issued by the 

Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
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ANNEXURE - I

P.S. RAO & ASSOCIATES thFlat No.10, 4  Floor,
Company Secretaries # 6-3-347/22/2, Ishwarya Nilayam,
 Opp: Sai Baba Temple, Dwarakapuri Colony,
 Panjagutta, Hyderabad - 500082.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2020

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members
Ushakiran Finance Limited
405, Raghava Ratna Towers, Chirag Ali Lane,
Hyderabad – 500001, Telangana

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Ushakiran Finance Limited, (hereinafter 
called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 
our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by 
the company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit 

stperiod covering the financial year ended on 31  March, 2020 complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
stmaintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31  March, 2020 according to the 

provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under.

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there 
under.

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under.

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there 
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment. (Not 
applicable to the company during the audit period).

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-
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 (a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011.

 (b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015.

 (c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018. (Not applicable to the    Company during the 
audit period).

 (d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 
Regulations, 2014. (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period).

 (e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2018. (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period).

 (f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 
client;

 (g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 
2009. (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) and

 (h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 
2018. (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period).

 (i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

vi. Other specifically applicable laws to the Company:

  Non-Banking Financial (Non - Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential 
Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses Secretarial Standards issued 
by the institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., mentioned above.

We further report that:

 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes 
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under 
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

 Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists 
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

 All the decisions at the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings have been carried out 
unanimously as recorded in the Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or 
Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

.

.

.

.
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We further report that:

. there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines.

 there were no such specific events/actions in pursuance of the above referred laws, 
rules, regulations, etc., having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs.

    For P.S. Rao & Associates
    Company Secretaries
         
    MB Suneel
Date : 31-7-2020 Company Secretary
Place: Hyderabad C.P.No:14449
    UDIN: A031197B000544754

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure A’ 
and forms an integral part of this report.

.
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‘ANNEXURE A’

To
The Members
Ushakiran Finance Limited
405, Raghava Ratna Towers, Chirag Ali Lane,
Hyderabad - 500001, Telangana

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our 
audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. 
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books 
of Account of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.,

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited 
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. A Substantial portion of the audit program was completed prior to the outbreak of the 
pandemic COVID-19. However, owning to the lockdown measure imposed in the country 
and the cascading impact thereof, for certain verifications and cross checks, we have 
relied on management representations and assurances, wherever required, for forming 
our opinion and eventual reporting.

7. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the company.

    For P.S. Rao & Associates
    Company Secretaries

    MB Suneel
Date : 31-7-2020 Company Secretary
Place: Hyderabad C.P.No:14449
    UDIN: A031197B000544754
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ANNEXURE - II

Form No. MGT - 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

stAs on  the Financial Year ended on 31  March, 2020
(pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 (1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i CIN L65923TG1986PLC006294

ii Registration date th20  March, 1986

iii Name of the Company USHAKIRAN FINANCE LIMITED

iv Category/Sub category of the 
Company   

Company Limited by Shares 
- Indian Non-Government Company

v Address of the Registered office and  
contact details

405, Raghava Ratna Towers, 
Chirag Ali Lane,   
Hyderabad - 500001. 
Tel: 040-23201073,                              
Email: ushakiranfinance@yahoo.co.in

vi Whether listed Company Yes

vii Name, Address & Contact details 
of Registrar and Transfer Agent, 
if any

Venture Capital and Corporate Investments 
Private Limited 
12-10-167, Bharat Nagar, 
Hyderabad - 500 018. 
Tel: 040 - 23818475,  
Email: info@vccilindia.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activites contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company are  
as stated below.

SI.
No.

Name and Description of main 
products/services

NIC Code of the  
products/services

% to total turnover of 
the Company

1 Finance and Investments 65993 100%

III. PARTICULARS  OF  HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SI.
No.

Name and Address 
of the Company

CIN/GLN
Holding/ 

Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of 
Shares 

held

Applicable 
Section

NIL
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NIRANJAN & NARAYAN, First Floor, H.No.7-1-8/1/A/21,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Shyamkaran Road, Ameerpet,

    

The Members of

Ushakiran Finance Limited,
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ushakiran Finance Limited (“the 

stCompany”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31  March, 2020, and the Statement of 
Profit and Loss, (including other comprehensive income) the Statement of Changes in Equity 
and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid Ind As financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“The Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended (“Ind As”) and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as 

stat 31  March, 2020, and its loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its 
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note No.35 to the accompanying financial statements, which describe the 
effects of uncertainties relating to Covid-19 pandemic outbreak on the Company’s operations 
and management’s evaluation of its impact on the accompanying financial statements as at 

st31  March, 2020, the impact of which is dependent on future developments that are highly 
uncertain. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Hyderabad- 500 016.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To
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Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Ind As financial statements of the current year. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind As financial statements as a whole and 
in forming our opinion thereon and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matters
How our audit addressed the 

key audit matter

1. Adoption of New Accounting framework 
st(Ind As) effective 1  April 2019, the 

Company adopted the Indian Accounting 

Standards ("Ind As") notified by the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs with the 
sttransition date of 1  April 2018.

 The following are the major impact 

areas for the Company upon transition:

 - Classification and measurement 

of Financial Assets and Financial 

Liabilities

 - Measurement of Loan losses 

(expected credit losses)

 - Measurement of investments- 

Equity Shares (quoted)

 - Measurement of Investments other 

than Equity

 Ind As 101, First Time Adoption 

prescribes choices and exemptions for 

first time application of Ind As principles 

at the transition date.

2. Impairment Loss Allowance 

Management’s judgments in the 

calculation of impairment allowances 

have significant impact on the financial 

statements. The estimates regarding 

impairment require a significant degree 

of judgement, which increased with 

implementation of Expected Credit Loss 
st(“ECL”) approach starting from 1  April 

2018 as required by Ind As 109 relating 

to “Financial instruments.”

 Management is required to determine 

the expected credit loss.

• We confirm the approvals of the 

Management for the choices and 

exemptions made by the Company for 

compliance/acceptability under Ind As 

101.

• Evaluated management's transition date 

choices and exemptions for compliance/

acceptability under Ind As 101.

• Understood, the methodology 

implemented by management to give 

impact on the transition and assessed 

the accuracy of the computations.

We obtained an understanding of 

management’s assessment of impairment 

of loans and advances including the Ind As 

109 implementation process, impairment 

allowance and ECL.
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Other Information
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Directors’ report and Management discussion and 
analysis but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind As financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that 
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind As Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind As financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
(including other comprehensive income) cash flows and changes in equity of the Company 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
accounting Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 
(as amended) under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the Ind As financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind As financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind As financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 



USHAKIRAN FINANCE LIMITED

46

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind As 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind As financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind As financial statements, 
including the disclosures and whether the Ind As financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or 
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 
user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating 
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 
standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence 
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind As financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, (“the Order”) issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we give in “Annexure A”, to this Report, a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

 a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

 c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt 
with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

 d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind As financial statements comply with the Indian 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

 e) stOn the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31  
March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 

stdisqualified as on 31  March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act.

 f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

 g) stIn our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31  March, 2020 
has been paid / provided by the company to its Directors/Manager in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

 h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to the information and explanations 
given to us:
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  i. The Company do not have pending litigations which will impact its 
 financial position in its financial statements.

  ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
 contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

  iii. There are no funds, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 
 and Protection Fund by the Company.

    for Niranjan and Narayan
    Chartered Accountants
    Firm Registration Number: 005899S

    (M. Niranjan)
    Partner
    Membership No. 029552
Place : Hyderabad UDIN: 20029552AAAAIF2146

stDate  : 31  July, 2020.
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ANNEXURE – A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of 
our Report of even date to the members of Ushakiran Finance Limited on the Ind As Financial 

stStatements as of and per the year ended 31  March, 2020.

1. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

 (b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the Management at reasonable 
intervals, and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the periodicity of 
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its assets.

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the Records of the company, the title deeds of immovable properties 
are held in the name of the Company.

2. The Company has for the first time adopted Ind As and as such all the equities have been 
classified as investments under financial assets. Thus paragraph 3 (ii) is not applicable to 
the company.

3. The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, 
limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under 
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year. Thus paragraphs 3 (iii) (a), 3 
(iii) (b) and 3 (iii) (c) are not applicable to the company.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the 
year, the Company has not given any loans, made investments, given guarantees or 
provided security to parties covered under the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Thus paragraph 3 (iv) is not applicable to the company.

5. During the year the company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the 
meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there 
under. Thus Paragraph 3(v) is not applicable to the company.

6. The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of Cost records 
under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for any of the activities of the Company. 
Thus paragraph 3(vi) is not applicable to the company.

7. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the company, the company is generally regular in 
depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees state 
insurance, income tax, Goods and Services Tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, 
value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. 
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts 
payable in respect of provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, Goods 
and Services Tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any 

stother statutory dues were in arrears as at 31  March, 2020, for a period of more than 
six months from the date they became payable.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of 
income tax, customs duty, Goods and Services Tax, excise duty and cess which 
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.
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8. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not defaulted 
in repayment of dues to the financial institutions, banks, government or debenture holders 
during the year. The Company has not obtained any loan from financial institutions, 
banks, government and debenture holders during the year.

9. The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) 
of the Order is not applicable.

10.   According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the 
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported 
during the course of our audit.

11.   According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial 
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of 
the Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

12.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

13.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance 
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting 
standards.

14.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment 
or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

15.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of records of the company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is 
not applicable.

16. The Company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934, and accordingly the Company was already registered under section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

    for Niranjan & Narayan
    Chartered Accountants
    Firm Registration Number: 005899S

    (M. Niranjan)
    Partner
    Membership No. 029552
Place: Hyderabad

stDate : 31  July, 2020.
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the 
members of Ushakiran Finance Limited on the Ind As Financial Statements for the year 

stended 31  March, 2020.)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-

section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ushakiran Finance 
stLimited (“the Company”) as of 31  March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 

statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, an adequate internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over 

stfinancial reporting were operating effectively as at 31  March, 2020, based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

    For Niranjan & Narayan
    Chartered Accountants
    Firm Registration Number: 005899S

    (M. Niranjan)
Place: Hyderabad Partner

stDate : 31  July, 2020. Membership No. 029552
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stBALANCE SHEET  AS AT 31  MARCH, 2020

Particulars
Note
No.

As at
31st March, 2020

Rs.

As at
31st March, 2019

Rs.

As at
st1  April, 2018

Rs.
I. ASSETS
 i. Financial Assets
  a) Cash and cash equivalents 2  3,53,379.95 36,62,883.79  5,60,550.96
  b) Bank Balance other than (a) above 3 56,99,262.00 41,79,878.00 51,23,804.00
  c) Trade Receivables 4  -  -  -
  d) Loans 5 67,66,471.60 40,55,607.85 49,28,799.00
  e) Investments 6 3,07,19,017.27 4,40,84,848.65 4,23,77,932.65
  f) Other Financial Assets 7  22,840.00 22,840.00  22,840.00

4,35,60,970.82 5,60,06,058.29 5,30,13,926.61
 ii. Non-Financial Assets
  a) Deferred tax Assets (net) 8  42,064.00 52,336.00  56,186.00
  b) Investment Property 9  7,03,600.00 15,36,075.00  15,36,075.00
  c) Property, Plant and Equipment 10  88,469.00 91,216.00  1,31,337.00
  d) Other non-Financial Assets 11  2,16,380.00 87,649.00  -

 10,50,513.00 17,67,276.00  17,23,598.00
Total Assets 4,46,11,483.82 5,77,73,334.29 5,47,37,524.61

II. LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
 i. Financial Liabilities
  (a) Trade Payables 12  -  -  -
  (b) Other Financial Liabilities 13  1,51,005.00  81,032.00  72,290.00

 1,51,005.00 81,032.00  72,290.00
 ii. Non-Financial Liabilities
  (a) Provisions  -  -  -
  (b) Other non-Financial Liabilities 14  -  -  2,194.00

 -  -  2,194.00
 iii. Equity
  (a) Equity Share capital 15 2,74,70,750.00 2,74,70,750.00 2,74,70,750.00
  (b) Other Equity 16 1,69,89,728.82 3,02,21,552.29 2,71,92,290.61

4,44,60,478.82 5,76,92,302.29 5,46,63,040.61
Total Liabilities and Equity 4,46,11,483.82 5,77,73,334.29 5,47,37,524.61
The accompanying Significant accounting 
policies and Notes form an integral part of 
the financial statements.

1 to 
38

Per our report of even date annexed                                 For and on behalf of the Board
for Niranjan and Narayan    
Chartered Accountants    
(Firm Regn. No.005899S) (T.R. Sekhar)  (P.R.K. Murthy)
    Director  Director 
    DIN: 02943146  DIN: 02769220
    
(M. Niranjan)    
Partner   (Sanjana Jain)  (Omprakash Koyalkar)
Membership No.029552 Company Secretary  Manager
    ACS: 55914 

Place : Hyderabad  (T. Ramesh Babu) 
Date  :  31.07.2020  Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020

Particulars
Note
No.

For the Year 
stEnded 31  

March, 2020                               
Rs.

For the Year 
stEnded 31  

March, 2019                               
Rs.

Income
I. Revenue from operations
 i. Interest Income 17  17,21,165.00 21,91,301.00 
 ii. Dividend Income 18 4,84,222.75 4,38,186.24 
 iii. Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 19 (14,13,540.08) 1,17,893.21 
Total Revenue from operations (I) 7,91,847.67 27,47,380.45 
II. Other Income 20 4,01,325.00 2,850.00 
III. Total Income (I+II) 11,93,172.67 27,50,230.45 
IV. Expenses
Finance Costs  -  - 
Impairment on financial instruments 21 2,43,311.00 11,18,285.20 
Employee Benefits Expenses 22 9,02,972.00 7,15,491.00 
Depreciation and amortization expense 23 11,747.00 40,121.00 
Other expenses 24 9,74,575.40 8,96,838.56 
Total Expenses (IV) 21,32,605.40 27,70,735.76 
V. Profit before tax (III-IV) (9,39,432.73)  (20,505.31)
VI. Tax Expense
 (1) Current Tax  - 1,32,966.00 
 (2) Deferred Tax  10,272.00 3,850.00 
VII. Profit/(loss) for the period (V-VI)  (9,49,704.73) (1,57,321.31)
VIII. Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or (loss) (1,22,82,118.74)  31,86,582.99 
Tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit or (loss)  -  - 
Items that will be reclassified to profit or (loss)  -  - 
Tax on items that may be reclassified to profit or (loss)  -  - 
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit 
or (loss)

 -  - 

Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year, net of tax (1,22,82,118.74) 31,86,582.99 

Total Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the period (1,32,31,823.47)  30,29,261.68 
Earnings per share of Rs.10/- each
Basic  (0.37)  (0.06)
Diluted  (0.37)  (0.06)
The accompanying Significant accounting policies and 
Notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

1 to 38

Per our report of even date annexed  For and on behalf of the Board
for Niranjan and Narayan    
Chartered Accountants    
(Firm Regn. No.005899S) (T.R. Sekhar)  (P.R.K. Murthy)
    Director  Director 
    DIN: 02943146  DIN: 02769220
    
(M. Niranjan)    
Partner   (Sanjana Jain)  (Omprakash Koyalkar)
Membership No.029552 Company Secretary  Manager
    ACS: 55914

Place : Hyderabad  (T. Ramesh Babu) 
Date  :  31.07.2020  Chief Financial Officer
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020

Particulars

For the Year
Ended

31.03.2020
Rs.

For the Year
Ended

31.03.2019
Rs.

A Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net profit before tax  (9,39,432.73)  (20,505.31)

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortization expense 11,747.00 40,121.00 

Provision for expected credit losses 2,43,311.00 11,18,285.20 

(Profit)/loss on sale of Investment Property (3,60,325.00)  - 

Net (gain)/loss on fair value changes 14,13,540.08 (1,17,893.21)

Operating profit before working capital changes 3,68,840.35 10,20,007.68 

Movements in Working Capital

(Increase)/Decrease in Loans (29,54,174.75) (2,45,094.85)

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non Financial Assets  (1,28,731.00) (87,649.00)

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Bank Balances (15,19,384.00) 9,43,926.00 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other current liabilities 69,973.00 8,742.00 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other non-financial liabilities  - (2,194.00)

Cash generated from operations (41,63,476.40) 16,37,737.83 

Taxes Paid  - (1,32,966.00)

Net Cash flows from operating activities (A) (41,63,476.40) 15,04,771.83 

B Cash flows from Investing Activities

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment  (9,000.00)  - 

Proceeds from sale of Investments Property 11,92,800.00  - 

(Purchase)/Sale of Investments Measured at FVOCI (3,29,827.44) 15,97,561.00 

Net Cash flows From/(Used In) Investing Activities (B) 8,53,972.56  15,97,561.00 

C Cash flows from Financing Activities

Proceeds from Long term borrowings  -  - 

Net Cash flows From/(Used In) Financing Activities (C)  -  - 

D Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (33,09,503.84) 31,02,332.83 

Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 36,62,883.79 5,60,550.96 

Cash and Cash equivalents at the ending of the year 3,53,379.95  36,62,883.79 

Per our report of even date annexed  For and on behalf of the Board
for Niranjan and Narayan    
Chartered Accountants    
(Firm Regn. No.005899S) (T.R. Sekhar)  (P.R.K. Murthy)
    Director  Director
    DIN: 02943146  DIN: 02769220
    
(M. Niranjan)    
Partner   (Sanjana Jain)  (Omprakash Koyalkar)
Membership No.029552 Company Secretary  Manager
    ACS: 55914

Place : Hyderabad  (T. Ramesh Babu) 
Date  :  31.07.2020  Chief Financial Officer
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1. Notes forming part of Financial Statements

1.1 Corporate Information
Ushakiran Finance Limited is a Non-Banking Finance Company registered with Reserve 
Bank of India and listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE Ltd.,). It is mainly engaged in 
the business of investments and financing.

1.2 Basis of Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
stThe financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31  March, 2020 have been 

prepared and presented in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind As”) 
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost convention on going concern 
and on accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial instruments that are measured 
at fair value. GAAPs of Indian Accounting Standards as specified in Section 133 of the Act read 
together with Rule 4 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules, 2016 to 
the extent applicable, pronouncements of regulatory bodies applicable to the Company and 
other provisions of the Act. Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where 
a newly issued Accounting Standards is initially adopted or revision to existing Accounting 
Standards requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. Management evaluates 
all recently issued or revised Accounting Standards on an on-going basis.

These are the company’s first annual financial statements prepared in accordance with 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind As). The Company has adopted all applicable standards 
and the adoption was carried out in accordance with Ind As 101 – ‘First Time Adoption of 
Indian Accounting Standards’. An explanation of how the transition to Ind As has affected 
the reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company are 
provided in Note number 25 First Time Adoption.

stThe Financial Statements for the year ended 31  March, 2019 and the opening Balance sheet 
stas at 1  April, 2018 have been restated in accordance with Ind As for comparative information. 

Reconciliations and explanations of the effect of the transition from previous GAAP to Ind As 
on the Company’s Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of Cash 
Flows are provided in notes.

Except for the changes below, the Company has consistently applied accounting policies to 
all applicable periods.

Amendment to Ind As 12, Income Taxes
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified limited amendments to Ind As 12 ‘Income 
Taxes’ with effect from April 1, 2019. The amendments require an entity to recognise the 
income tax consequences of dividends as defined in Ind As 109 when it recognises a liability 
to pay a dividend. The income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly to past 
transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to distributions to owners. 
Therefore, an entity shall recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, 
other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those 
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past transactions or events. Since Dividend Distribution Tax is not applicable with effective 
from April 1, 2020, this amendment will have no impact on the financial statements.

Appendix C to Ind As 12, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 containing Appendix C to Ind As 12, Uncertainty over 
Income Tax Treatments which clarifies the application and measurement requirements in Ind 
As 12 when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The current and deferred tax 
asset or liability shall be recognized and measured by applying the requirements in Ind As 
12 based on the taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits 
and tax rates determined by applying this appendix. The amendment is effective from April 1, 
2019. The Company has evaluated the effect of this amendment on the financial statements 
and concluded that there is no significant impact.

Amendment to Ind As 19, Employee Benefits
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified limited amendments to Ind As 19 ‘Employee 
Benefits’ in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. 
The amendments require an entity to use updated assumptions to determine current service 
cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or 
settlement and to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on 
settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised 
because of the impact of the asset ceiling. The amendment is effective from April 1, 2019 
the Company has evaluated the effect of this amendment on the financial statements and 
concluded that this amendment is currently not applicable.

Ind As 116, Leases
Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind As 116 “Leases” and applied to its 
Lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019, using the modified retrospective method and 
has taken the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application. 
The Company has evaluated the effect of this amendment on the financial statements and 
concluded that there is no significant impact.

1.3 Basis of Measurement
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current based on the operating 
cycle of twelve months or based on the criteria of realisation/settlement within twelve months 
period from the reporting/balance sheet date.

Assets: An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a. It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s 
normal operating cycle;

b. It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

c. It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d. It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle 
a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
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Liabilities: A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a. It is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

b. It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

c. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d. The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability 
for at least twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the 
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do 
not affect its classification.

Current assets/liabilities include the current portion of noncurrent assets/liabilities respectively. 
All other assets/liabilities are classified as noncurrent. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
always disclosed as non-current.

1.4 Accounting Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with the recognition and measurement 
principles of Ind As, requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as 
at the date of financial statements and the results of operation during the reported period. 
Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events 
and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates which are recognised in the 
period in which they are determined.

a. Depreciation and amortization: Depreciation and amortization is based on management 
estimates of the future useful lives of certain class of property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets.

b. Provisions  and  contingencies  Provision   and   contingencies   are   based  on   the    
Management’s best estimate of the liabilities based on the facts known at the balance sheet 
date.

c. Fair valuation:
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless 
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. 
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the 
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics 
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. In addition, for 
financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and 
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described 
as follows:

Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
that the entity can access at the measurement date;
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Level 2: Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable 
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, 
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by 
reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and 
liabilities which are required to be re-measured or reassessed in line with the Company's 
Accounting Policies. For this analysis, the Company verifies the major inputs applied in the 
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other 
relevant documents. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined 
classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the 
asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

1.5 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is also the functional 
currency of the Company. All financial information presented in Indian rupees.

1.6 Property, Plant & Equipment
Transition to Ind As
The Company has elected to continue with the net carrying value of all its property, plant and 

stequipment recognized as of 1  April, 2018 (transition date) as per the previous GAAP and 
use that carrying value as its deemed cost.

Recognition and measurement
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at purchase price or cost of acquisition or construction 
less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost includes expenditures that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset i.e., freight, duties and taxes applicable 
and other expenses related to acquisition and installation. The cost of self-constructed assets 
includes the cost of materials and other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to 
a working condition for its intended use. Borrowing  costs that are directly attributable to the 
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of that 
asset.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. An 
item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continuous use of the asset.

Gains and losses upon disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined 
by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and 
equipment and are recognized net within the statement of profit and loss.
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The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the 
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within 
the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of repairs 
and maintenance are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Items of property, plant and equipment acquired through exchange of non-monetary assets 
are measured at fair value, unless the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance or 
the fair value of either the asset received or asset given up is not reliably measurable, in which 
case the asset exchanged is recorded at the carrying amount of the asset given up. Property, 
Plant and Equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet 
are disclosed as “Capital Work-in-Progress”. Intangible assets with finite useful lives that 
are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

Depreciation
Depreciation is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on written down value method 
over the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment based on Schedule - II to the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Schedule”), which prescribes the useful lives for various classes of 
tangible assets and useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and 
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. For assets acquired or disposed off during the year, 
depreciation is provided on prorata basis. Land is not depreciated.

1.7 Investment Property
Investment property is property (land or a building-or part of a building-or both) held to earn 
rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for:

(a) Use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or

(b) Sale in the ordinary course of business.

Transition to Ind As
The Company has elected to continue with the net carrying value of all its Investment property 

strecognized as of 1  April, 2018 (transition date) as per the previous GAAP and use that 
carrying value as its deemed cost.

Recognition and measurement:
An investment property shall be recognised as an asset when and only when

(a) It is probable that the future economic benefits that are associated with the investment 
property will flow to the entity; and

(b) The cost of the investment property can be measured reliably.

An investment property shall be measured initially at its cost. Transaction costs shall be 
included in the initial measurement. The company adopted cost model prescribed in Ind As 
16 for accounting its investment property.

Cost Model:
After recognition as an asset, an item of investment property shall be carried at its cost less 
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
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Depreciation:
Depreciation on items of Investment Property is provided on written down value basis, 
computed on the basis of useful lives mentioned in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 
2013. Depreciation on additions/disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e., from/up to 
the date on which asset is ready for use/disposed-off. The residual values, useful lives and 
method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, 
if appropriate.

Land is non-depreciable asset as per the Schedule II of the companies Act, 2013.

1.8 Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

A. Financial Assets

1. Initial Recognition
In the case of financial assets, not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), financial 
assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable 

to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require 
delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market 
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company 
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

2. Subsequent Measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following 
categories:

a. Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets 
are held within a business model with an objective to hold these assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using 
the effective interest rate (“EIR”) method. Impairment gains or losses arising on these assets 
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value
Financial assets are measured at fair value through OCI if these financial assets are held 
within a business model with an objective to hold these assets in order to collect contractual 
cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through 
OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign 
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Investment in Equity Instruments are designated as Financial Assets measured at fair value 
through OCI and Investments in Mutual Funds, Bonds, Debentures etc., are designated 
as Financial Assets measured at fair value through statement of Profit & Loss on date of 
transition.

c. De-recognition of Financial Assets
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash 
flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest 
in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred 
financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises 
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

B. Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to 
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial 
liability and an equity instrument.

1. Initial Recognition
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans 
and borrowings and payables as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at 
fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable 
transaction costs.

2. Subsequent Measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

a. Financial liabilities at FVPL
Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held for 
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses 
on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3. De-recognition of Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another 
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the 
original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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1.9 Impairment of non-financial assets
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not 
be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e., the 
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual 
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of 
those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash 
Generated Units (CGU) to which the asset belongs. If such assets are considered to be 
impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the statement of profit and loss is measured 
by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable 
amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if 
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The 
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that 
this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of 
any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for 
the asset in prior years.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment 
losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications 
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has 
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no 
impairment loss had been recognized.

1.10 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Bank balances comprise of cash balance in hand, in current accounts with banks 
and Bank Fixed Deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less than 3 months. Cash 
flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/(loss) before tax is adjusted for 
the effects of transactions of no cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
cash receipts or payments. Cash flow for the year is classified by operating, investing and 
financing activities.

1.11 Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability 
is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal 
or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the 
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. The Company is not having any 
defined contribution plans at present.

1.12 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be 
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made of the amount of obligation. Provisions (excluding gratuity and compensated absences) 
are determined based on management’s estimate required to settle the obligation at the 
Balance Sheet date. In case the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted 
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. When discounting 
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance 
cost. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current 
management estimates.

Contingent liabilities
A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present 
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is 
a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of 
resources is remote, no such disclosure is made.

Contingent assets
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent assets 
are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits 
will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in the period in which the change 
occurs.

1.13 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, stated net of discounts and returns. Transaction price is recognised 
based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated sales incentives/discounts. 
Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for the discounts/right of return, 
using the expected value method.

As per Ind As 109, Financial Instruments, Interest income from financial assets is recognised 
on accrual basis, other than non performing assets, using effective interest rate method (EIR). 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest 
income is accrued on time proportionate basis, by reference to the principle outstanding 
and at the effective interest rate applicable. Interest income on Non-performing, doubtful/loss 
assets etc., are recognized as and when the amount is received and appropriated towards 
interest. Interest Income on Fixed Deposits is recognized on time proportionate basis taking 
into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate.

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the Company’s right to receive 
payment has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will 
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Net gain on fair value changes
The Company designates certain financial assets for subsequent measurement at fair value 
through profit or loss (FVTPL) or fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). 
The Company recognises gains on fair value change of financial assets measured at FVTPL 
and realised gains on derecognition of financial asset measured at FVTPL and FVOCI on 
net basis.
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Impairment of Financial Assets
In accordance with Ind As 109, the company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for 
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the trade receivables or any contractual 
right to receive cash or another financial asset. As Company trade receivables are realised 
within normal credit period adopted by the company, the company trade receivables are not 
impaired.

However the company provides the expected credit loss on loans and advance made by the 
company as per the prudential guidelines on both performing assets and non-performing 
assets. The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to ascertain 
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognised when the 
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of the net selling price of the assets and their value in use.

1.14 Income Tax

Current Tax
Current Tax expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses 
relate. Current income tax is recognised based on the estimated tax liability computed after 
taking credit for allowances, deductions and exemptions in accordance with the Income Tax 
Act, 1961. Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected 
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to 
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting 
date.

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is determined by applying the Balance Sheet approach. Deferred tax assets 
and liabilities are recognised for all deductible temporary differences between the financial 
statements’ carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax base. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates or tax rates that 
are substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. The effect on deferred tax assets and 
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognised in the period that includes the enactment date. 
Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets 
are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to reassess realisation.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset 
current tax assets and liabilities. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the 
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Cash flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit after tax is adjusted 
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature, tax and any deferrals or accruals of past 
or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows are prepared for the operating, investing 
and financing activities of the Company.
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1.15 Earnings Per Share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its ordinary 
shares. Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings 
per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of 
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average 
number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.

1.16 Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using effective interest method, less provision for impairment, if any.

1.17 Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to 
the end of the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are presented 
as current liabilities unless payment is not due within twelve months after the reporting period. 
They are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using 
the effective interest method.

1.18 Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing 
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 
2020.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note: 2 Cash and Cash Equivalents                                                                              (Rs.)

Particulars
As at

st31  March, 2020
As at

st31  March, 2019
As at

st1  April, 2018

Cash on hand  34,629.17  22,465.36  8,644.31 

Cheques in hand  -  47,250.00  - 

Balances with banks:

- In current accounts 3,18,750.78 35,93,168.43 5,51,906.65 

Total  3,53,379.95  36,62,883.79  5,60,550.96 

Note: 3 Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents                                 (Rs.)

Particulars
As at

st31  March, 2020
As at

st31  March, 2019
As at

st1  April, 2018

Term deposits  56,99,262.00 41,79,878.00  51,23,804.00 

Total 56,99,262.00  41,79,878.00 51,23,804.00 

Note: 4 Trade Receivables                                                                                              (Rs.)

As at
st31  March, 2020

As at
st31  March, 2019

As at
st1  April, 2018

Trade receivables  -  -  - 

Total  -  -  - 

Particulars
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Note: 5 Loans                                                                                                                   (Rs.)

Particulars
As at

st31  March, 2020
As at

st31  March, 2019
As at

st1  April, 2018

Loans & Advances, Secured  - 12,53,443.00  12,53,443.00 

Loans & Advances, Unsecured  75,18,301.60 32,52,785.85 42,23,000.00 

Loans & Advances Unsecured, 
Doubtful

29,19,361.00 29,77,259.00 17,61,950.00 

Total (A) 1,04,37,662.60 74,83,487.85 72,38,393.00 

Less: Provision

Provision for Impairement on 
Loans 

 36,52,391.00 34,16,580.00  22,95,894.00 

Provision for Standard Assets 18,800.00 11,300.00 13,700.00 

Total (B)  36,71,191.00 34,27,880.00 23,09,594.00 

Total Loans (A-B) - Net 67,66,471.60  40,55,607.85 49,28,799.00 

Note 6: Investments (Non Current)                                                                                (Rs.)

Particulars

As at
st31  March, 2020

As at
st31  March, 2019

As at
st1  April, 2018

Non Current Non Current Non Current

A. Investments Carried at fair 
value through OCI

Investments in Quoted Equity 
Instruments 

 2,76,56,373.35 3,97,36,364.59  3,64,20,194.80 

Investments in UnQuoted Equity 
Instruments 

2,25,000.00 2,25,000.00 2,25,000.00 

B. Investments designated as 
fair value through Profit & Loss 

Investments other than Equity 28,37,643.92 41,23,484.06 57,32,737.85 

Total Non Current Investments 3,07,19,017.27 4,40,84,848.65 4,23,77,932.65 
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Note: 7 Other Financial Assets                                                                                      (Rs.)

Particulars
As at

st31  March, 2020
As at

st31  March, 2019
As at

st1  April, 2018

Telephone Deposits  11,480.00  11,480.00  11,480.00 

Rental Deposit  11,360.00  11,360.00  11,360.00 

Total  22,840.00  22,840.00  22,840.00 

Note: 8 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)                                                                                  (Rs.)

Particulars
As at

st31  March, 2020
As at

st31  March, 2019
As at

st1  April, 2018

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)  42,064.00  52,336.00  56,186.00 

Total  42,064.00  52,336.00  56,186.00 
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Note: 11 Other Non - Financial Assets                                                                          (Rs.)

Particulars
As at 
st31  March,
 2020

As at
st31  March, 
2019

As at
st1  April, 
2018

Income Tax Refund Due  
for F.Y. 2019-2020

 2,07,091.00  -  - 

Income Tax Refund Due for earlier years  9,289.00  87,649.00  - 

Total  2,16,380.00  87,649.00  - 

Note: 12 Trade Payables                                                                                                (Rs.)

Particulars
As at

st31  March, 
2020

As at 
st31  March, 
2019

As at 
st1  April, 
2018

Trade Payables  -  -  - 

Total  -  -  - 

Note: 13 Other Financial Liabilities                                                                               (Rs.)

Particulars
As at

st31  March, 
2020

As at 
st31  March, 
2019

As at 
st1  April, 
2018

Salaries Payable  75,475.00  -  - 

Other Payables  75,530.00  81,032.00  72,290.00 

Total  1,51,005.00  81,032.00  72,290.00 

Note: 14 Other Non-Financial Liabilities                                                                       (Rs.)

Particulars
As at 

st31  March,
2020

As at 
st31  March, 
2019

As at 
st1  April, 
2018

Statutory dues  -  -  2,194.00 

Others  -  -  - 

Total  -  -  2,194.00 



USHAKIRAN FINANCE LIMITED

81

Note: 15 Share Capital

Particulars
As at 

st31  March, 
2020

As at 
st31  March,
 2019

As at 
st1  April,
2018

a) Authorized Share Capital

40,00,000 Equity Shares of
Rs.10/- each

4,00,00,000.00 4,00,00,000.00 4,00,00,000.00 

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

b) Issued & Subscribed Capital

33,54,700 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- 
each

3,35,47,000.00 3,35,47,000.00 3,35,47,000.00 

c) Paid up Capital

25,44,500 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- 
each

2,54,45,000.00 2,54,45,000.00 2,54,45,000.00 

d) Forfeited Shares  20,25,750.00  20,25,750.00  20,25,750.00 

2,74,70,750.00 2,74,70,750.00 2,74,70,750.00 

a) Reconciliation of Number of Shares

Particulars
As at 

st31  March, 
2020

As at 
st31  March, 
2019

As at 
st1  April, 
2018

Number of Shares at the beginning of 
the year

 25,44,500  25,44,500  25,44,500 

Add : Shares issued during the year  -  -  - 

Number of Shares at the end of the 
year

 25,44,500  25,44,500  25,44,500 
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b) Terms/Rights attached
The Company has issued only one class of shares having par value of Rs.10/- per share. 
Each holder of equity shares who has paid total amount of Rs.10/- per share is entitled to 
one vote per share. In the event of Liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares 
will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of preferential 
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders.

c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares

Particulars

As at 
st31  March, 2020

As at 
st31  March, 2019

As at 
st1  April, 2018

No. of 
shares

% 
Holding

No. of 
shares

% 
Holding

No. of 
shares

% 
Holding

Krishnaraj Securities 
Private Limited

6,12,550 24.07% 6,12,550 24.07% 6,12,550 24.07%

T. Adinarayana 3,25,385 12.79% 3,25,385 12.79% 3,25,385 12.79%

Andhra Pradesh 
Industrial Development 
Corporation Ltd.,

1,92,900 7.58% 1,92,900 7.58% 1,92,900 7.58%
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Note 17: Revenue from Operations                                                                               (Rs.)

Particulars
As at 

st31  March, 2020
As at 

st31  March, 2019

a) Interest Income

       Interest on Loans & Advances  13,46,825.00  21,37,538.00 

       Interest on Fixed Deposits 3,74,340.00 53,763.00 

Total 17,21,165.00  21,91,301.00 

Note 18: Dividend  Income                                                                                             (Rs.)

Particulars
As at 

st31  March, 2020
As at 

st31  March, 2019

a)  Dividend Income

    (i) From Equity  4,84,222.75  4,22,128.06 

    (ii) From Mutual Funds  -  16,058.18 

Total  4,84,222.75  4,38,186.24 

Note 19: Net Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value Changes other than Equity                        (Rs.)

Particulars
As at

st31  March, 2020
As at 

st31  March, 2019

on Mutual Funds  (14,13,540.08)  1,17,893.21 

Total (14,13,540.08)  1,17,893.21 
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Note 20: Other Income                                                                                                    (Rs.)

Particulars
As at 

st31  March, 2020
As at 

st31  March, 2019

a)  Bad Debts Recovery  -  - 

b)  Profit on Sale of Assets  3,60,325.00  - 

c)  Other Interest  41,000.00  - 

d)  Miscellaneous Income  -  2,850.00 

Total 4,01,325.00  2,850.00 

Note 21: Impairment on Financial Instruments                                                           (Rs.)

Particulars
As at 

st31  March, 2020
As at 

st31  March, 2019

On loans  2,43,311.00  11,18,285.20 

Total  2,43,311.00 11,18,285.20 

Note 22: Employee benefits expense                                                                            (Rs.)

Particulars
As at

st 31  March, 2020
As at 

st31  March, 2019

Salaries  8,72,246.00  6,87,371.00 

Staff welfare expenses  30,726.00  28,120.00 

Total  9,02,972.00  7,15,491.00 

Note 23: Depreciation & Amortisation                                                                          (Rs.)

Particulars
As at 

st31  March, 2020
As at 

st31  March, 2019

Depreciation  11,747.00  40,121.00 

Total  11,747.00  40,121.00 
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Note 24: Other Expenses                                                                                                (Rs.)

Particulars
As at

st31  March, 2020
As at

st31  March, 2019

Electricity Charges  32,563.00  11,716.00 

Rent  1,38,000.00  59,725.00 

Insurance  6,853.00  6,216.00 

Advertisement Expenses  48,326.00  55,997.20 

Annual custody fee  35,532.16  26,171.21 

Audit Fee & Expenses  20,500.00  20,000.00 

Bank Charges  1,488.95  4,168.00 

Books & Periodicals  8,531.00  7,400.00 

Computer Maintenance  15,750.00  10,190.00 

Conveyance Expenses  16,125.39  10,110.43 

Internet & Broadband Charges  5,959.00  6,372.00 

Listing Fees  3,54,000.00  2,95,000.00 

Membership Fee  17,700.00  17,700.00 

Miscellaneous expenses  34,316.00  51,706.20 

Office Maintenance Charges  31,031.00  34,406.00 

Postage & Telegrams  20,452.00  63,435.00 

Printing & Stationery  40,895.36  56,356.00 

Professional Charges  12,000.00  15,500.00 

Secretarial Audit Fee  25,000.00  25,000.00 

Share Transfer Fee  68,983.54  87,318.00 

Telephone Charges  12,661.00  12,036.00 

Vehicle Maintenance  17,308.00  10,466.52 

Website Maintanance Charges  10,600.00  9,849.00 

Total  9,74,575.40  8,96,838.56 
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25. First-time adoption of Ind As
stThese financial statements, for the year ended 31  March, 2020, are the first set of financial 

statements the Company has prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
stAs). For periods up to and including the year ended 31  March, 2019, the Company prepared 

its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 

of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).

The Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind As applicable for 
stperiods ending on 31  March, 2020, together with the comparative period data as at and 
stfor the year ended 31  March, 2019, as described in the summary of significant accounting 

policies. In preparing these financial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was 
stprepared as at 1 A pril, 2018, i.e., the Company’s date of transition to Ind As. This note 

explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial 
ststatements, including the balance sheet as at 1  April, 2018 and the financial statements as 

stat and for the year ended 31  March, 2019.

Exemptions Applied

 Ind As 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of 

certain requirements under Ind As. The Company has applied the following exemptions:

The Company adopted not to measure any item of Property, plant and equipment and 

Investment property at its fair value at the Transition Date. Accordingly, on the transition date, 

the net carrying value of the property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and Investment 

property shall be considered as deemed cost for Ind As purposes.

Estimates
st stThe estimates at 1  April, 2018 and at 31  March, 2019 are consistent with those made for 

the same dates in accordance with Indian GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any differences 

in accounting policies) apart from the following items where application of Indian GAAP did 

not require estimation:

FVTPL – Quoted Mutual Funds, Bonds, Debentures etc.,

FVTOCI – Equity Instruments

The estimates used by the Company to present these amounts in accordance with Ind As 
st streflect conditions at 1  April, 2018, the date of transition to Ind As and as of 31  March, 

2019.
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Reconciliation of equity as previously reported under Previous GAAP and that computed 
under Ind As:

Particulars
Equity as at 
st31  March, 2019

Rs.

Equity as at 
st1  April, 2018

Rs.

Equity as per Previous GAAP 2,23,41,582.23 2,21,66,331.70

Impact on account of measuring investments at 
fair value

3,67,41,774.00 3,28,62,176.91

Impact of Impairment (14,41,879.94) (5,73,594.00)

Impact on deferred taxes 50,826.00 2,08,126.00

Equity as per Ind As 5,76,92,302.29 5,46,63,040.61

Reconciliation between financial results as previously reported under Previous GAAP and 
stInd As for the year ended 31  March, 2019:

Particulars

stYear ended 31  
March, 2019

Rs.

Net profit as per Previous GAAP  1,75,250.53

Impact on account of measuring investments at fair value through 
profit and loss

1,17,893.21

Provision for Diminution in value of investments already provided as 
per GAAP

3,55,000.00

Impact on account of changes in inventory as per GAAP 2,20,120.15

Impact on account of deferred tax (1,57,300.00)

Impact of Impairment (8,68,285.20)

Net profit as per Ind As (1,57,321.31)

FVTPL Financial assets
Under Indian GAAP, the Company accounted for long term investments in quoted equity 
shares as investments measured at cost less provision for diminution other than temporary 
diminution in the value of investments, if any. Under Ind As, the Company has designated 
such investments as FVTPL investments. Ind As requires FVTPL investments to be measured 
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at fair value. At the date of transition to Ind As, difference between the instruments fair value 
and Indian GAAP carrying amount has been recognized as a separate component of equity, 
in the retained earnings.

Deferred tax
Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the statement of profit and loss approach, 
which focuses on differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. 
Ind As 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, 
which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability 
in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind As 12 approach has resulted 
in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under 
Indian GAAP.

26. Auditors Remuneration

Particulars

For the year 
stended 31  

March, 2020
Rs.

For the year 

Rs.

 Audit fee 20,000.00 20,000.00

 Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses  500.00 -

 TOTAL 20,500.00 20,000.00

27. Earnings per Share

Particulars

For the year 
stended 31  

March, 2020

Rs.

For the year 

Rs.

Earnings

Profit attributable to equity holders (9,49,704.73) (1,57,321.31)

Shares

Number of shares at the beginning of the year 25,44,500 25,44,500

Add: Equity Shares issued - -

stended 31  
March, 2019

stended 31  
March, 2019
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Less: Buy back of Equity shares - -

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the 
end of the year

25,44,500 25,44,500

Weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year – Basic

25,44,500 25,44,500

Add: Weighted average number of equity shares 
arising out of outstanding stock options (net of the 
stock options forfeited) that have dilutive effect on 
the EPS

- -

Weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year – Diluted

25,44,500 25,44,500

Earnings per share of par value Rs.10/- – Basic (0.37) (0.06)

Earnings per share of par value Rs.10/- – 
Diluted

(0.37) (0.06)

28. Related Parties
In accordance with the provisions of Ind As 24 “Related Party Disclosures” and the Companies 
Act, 2013, Company’s Directors, members of the Company’s Management and Key Managerial 
Personnel are considered. List of related parties of the Company is as below:

Sl.No. Name of the Related Party Nature of Relationship

1 Sri. T. Adinarayana Director

2 Sri. P. R. K. Murthy Independent Director

3 Mrs. S. Jhansi Kumari Independent Director

4 Sri. T. R. Sekhar Director

5 Ms. Shriya Jain (Company Secretary)

6 Mrs. Sanjana Jain Company Secretary

7 Sri. K. Omprakash Manager

8 Mrs. B. Rama Devi (Chief Financial Officer)

9 Sri. Ramesh Babu T Chief Financial Officer
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Related Party Transactions

Sl.
No.

Nature of Transaction
FY 2019-20

Rs.
Total
Rs.

FY 2018-19
Rs.

Total
Rs.

Directors Remuneration / 
Salary and Perquisites

- - - -

Fee for attending Board/Committee meeting

1  T. Adinarayana - - - -

2  P. R.K. Murthy - - - -

3  S. Jhansi Kumari - - - -

4  T.R. Sekhar - - - -

5
J.P.S. Neelam Sai
(Company Secretary)

- -  64,000.00  64,000.00

6
Shriya Jain, (Company 
Secretary)

 17,000.00  1,00,903.00  1,00,903.00

7
Sanjana Jain, Company 
Secretary

 2,72,581.00 - -

8
Omprakash Koyalkar
(CFO)

- -  54,435.00  54,435.00

9
N. Swaroop Kumar
(Manager)

- -  36,194.00 36,194.00

10
Omprakash Koyalkar, 
Manager

 2,40,900.00  1,48,065.00  1,48,065.00

11 B. Rama Devi, (CFO)  2,35,757.00  1,96,103.00  1,96,103.00

12 T. Ramesh Babu, CFO  25,000.00 - -

Enterprises related to promoters / directors or their relatives:

M/s. Sigachi Laboratories Limited and M/s. Krishnaraj Securities Private Limited.

29. Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability 

is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal 

or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the 

 17,000.00

 2,72,581.00

-

-

 2,40,900.00

 2,35,757.00

 25,000.00



USHAKIRAN FINANCE LIMITED

93

employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. The Company is not having any 

defined contribution plans at present.

30. Income Taxes

a. Income tax expense/(benefit) recognized in the statement of profit and loss:

Income tax expense/(benefit) recognized in the statement of profit and loss consists of the

following:                                                                                                                           (Rs.)

Particulars

stFor the Year Ended 31  March

2020 2019

Current taxes expense

Domestic - 1,32,966.00

Deferred taxes expense/(benefit)

Domestic 10,272.00 3,850.00

Total income tax expense/(benefit) recognized in the
statement of profit and loss

10,272.00 1,36,816.00

b. Reconciliation of Effective tax rate

Particulars

stFor the Year Ended 31  March

2020 2019

Profit before income taxes  (9,39,433) 1,54,767

Enacted tax rate in India 26% 26%

Computed expected tax (benefit)/expense (2,44,253) 40,239

Effect of:
Expenses not deductible for Tax purposes  4,34,941 2,40,434

Expenses deductible for Tax purposes (11,938) (14,282)

Items not subjected to Tax purposes (2,19,582) (1,33,425)

Taxable at Special Rates - -

Income tax (benefit)/expense (40,832) 1,32,966

Effective tax rate - 85.91%
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c. Deferred tax Assets & Liabilities
The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred tax assets and
liabilities and a description of the items that created these differences is given below:

(Rs.)

Particulars

stFor the Year Ended 31  March

2020 2019

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities): opening  52,336.00 56,186.00

Property, plant and equipment (10,272.00) (3,850.00)

Others - -

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 42,064.00 52,336.00

std. Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year ended 31  March, 2020 & 
2019  (Rs.)

Particulars

stAs at 1  
April, 
2019

Recognized in 
statement of 

profit and loss

Recognized 
in equity

stAs at 31  
March, 2020

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

Property, plant and equipment 52,336.00 (10,272.00) - 42,064.00

Net deferred tax assets/
(liabilities)

52,336.00 (10,272.00) - 42,064.00

Particulars

stAs at 1  
April, 
2018

Recognized in 
statement of 

profit and loss

Recognized 
in equity

stAs at 31  
March, 2019

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

Property, plant and equipment 56,186.00 (3,850.00) - 52,336.00

Net deferred tax assets/
(liabilities)

56,186.00 (3,850.00) - 52,336.00

31. Investments
 Investments consist of investments in Mutual funds, Bonds, Preference Shares and debentures 
measured at Fair value through Profit & Loss Account and investment in equity instruments 
measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income. The election made at the time 
of transition to Ind As is irrevocable.

 (Rs.)
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The details of such Investments in Mutual Funds, Debentures, Bonds, Preference Shares 
stand Equity as of 31  March, 2019 are as follows:                                                             (Rs.)

Particulars Cost

Gain 
recognized 
directly in 

equity

Gain 
recognized 
directly in 

profit and loss 
account

Fair value

Non-current Investments

Investments in Other 
than Equity

 22,96,726.61 - 1,17,893.21 41,23,484.06

Total  22,96,726.61 - 1,17,893.21 41,23,484.06

stThe details of such Investments in Equity as of 31  March, 2019 are as follows:
(Rs.)

Particulars Cost

Gain 
recognized 
directly in 

equity

Gain 
recognized 

directly in OCI
Fair value

Non-current Investments

Investments in Equity  81,50,998.13 - 31,86,582.99 3,99,61,364.59

Total  81,50,998.13 - 31,86,582.99 3,99,61,364.59

The details of such Investments in Mutual Funds, Debentures, Bonds, Preference Shares an 
stother than Equity as of 31  March, 2020 are as follows:

(Rs.)

Particulars Cost

Gain 
recognized 
directly in 

equity

Gain 
recognized 
directly in 

profit and loss 
account

Fair value

Non-current Investments

Investments in Other 
than Equity

 26,26,554.05 - (14,13,540.08)  28,37,643.92

Total  26,26,554.05 - (14,13,540.08)  28,37,643.92
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stThe details of such Investments in Equity as of 31  March, 2020 are as follows:
(Rs.)

Particulars Cost

Gain 
recognized 
directly in 

equity

Gain 
recognized

in OCI
Fair value

Non-current Investments

Investments in Equity 81,50,998.13 - (1,22,82,118.74) 2,78,81,373.35

Total 81,50,998.13 - (1,22,82,118.74) 2,78,81,373.35

32. Financial Instruments
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the financial 
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of 
fair values.

(Rs.)

Particulars
Carrying value Fair value

Mar-20 Mar-19 Apr-18 Mar-20 Mar-19 Apr-18

Financial assets

Cash and cash 
equivalents

 3,53,379.95  36,62,883.79  5,60,550.96  3,53,379.95  36,62,883.79  5,60,550.96

Bank Balance other 
than above Cash and 
cash equivalents

 56,99,262.00  41,79,878.00 51,23,804.00  56,99,262.00  41,79,878.00 51,23,804.00

Trade receivables - - - - - -

Loans  67,66,471.60  40,55,607.85  49,28,799.00  67,66,471.60  40,55,607.85  49,28,799.00

Other financial assets  22,840.00  22,840.00  22,840.00  22,840.00  22,840.00  22,840.00

Total 1,28,41,953.55 1,19,21,209.64 1,06,35,993.96 1,28,41,953.55 1,19,21,209.64 1,06,35,993.96

Financial liabilities

Provisions - - - - - -

Trade payables - - - - - -

Other financial liabilities  1,51,005.00  81,032.00  72,290.00  1,51,005.00  81,032.00 72,290.00

Total  1,51,005.00  81,032.00  72,290.00  1,51,005.00  81,032.00  72,290.00
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The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure 
fair value that are either observable or unobservable and consists of the following three 
levels:

Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable 
for the Asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived 
from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair 
values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on 
assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market 
transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

33. Financial Risk Management
The Company’s activities   expose it to a variety of financial risks, including credit risk, 
liquidity risk and Market risk. The Company’s risk management assessment and policies 
and processes are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to 
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the 
same. Risk assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed regularly to 
reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Board of Directors 
and the Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company’s risk assessment and 
management policies and processes.

a) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer fails to meet his 
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the company's loan receivables. Credit 
risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of credit 
worthiness as well as concentration of risks. Risk principally consist of investments, loans 
and receivables, trade receivables, loans and advances and other financial assets.

Trade Receivables - The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the 
individual characteristics of each customer. On account of adoption of Ind As 109, the 
Company uses Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for assessing the impairment loss. The 
Company is not having any trade receivables during the year 2019-2020. Financial assets 
that are neither past due nor impaired - None of the Company’s cash equivalents, including 

stdeposits with banks, were past due or impaired as at 31  March, 2020.

b) Liquidity Risks
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as 
they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, 
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal 
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company’s 
reputation. The Company's objective is to provide financial resources to meet its business 
objectives in a timely, cost effective and reliable manner and to manage its capital structure.
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stAs of 31  March, 2020 and 2019, the Company had unutilized credit limits from banks of NIL 
and NIL respectively.

stAs of 31  March, 2020, the Company had working capital (current assets less current 
liabilities) of Rs.59,01,636.95 including cash and cash equivalents of Rs.3,53,379.95, As of 

st31  March, 2019, the Company had working capital of Rs.77,61,729.79 including cash and 
cash equivalents of Rs.36,62,883.79.

c) Market Risks
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and 
interest rates which will affect the Company’s financial position. Market risk is attributable 
to all market risk sensitive financial instruments. Market risk is the risk that the fair value of 
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 
Market Risk comprises of: Interest Rate Risk and Foreign Currency Risk.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in Market Interest Rates. The Company is not having any debt 
obligations with floating interest rates.

Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign Currency Risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is not having any 
foreign exchange exposure.

34. Capital Management
The Company’s objective for capital management is to maximize shareholder wealth, 
safeguard business continuity and support the growth of the Company. The Company 
determines the capital management requirement based on annual operating plans and long 
term and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity, 
and operating cash flows required. The Company's capital comprises Equity Share Capital, 
Retained Earnings and other equity attributable to equity holders.

35. Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19
The Covid-19 continues to spread across the globe and India, which has contributed to a 
significant decline and volatility in global and Indian Financial Markets and a decrease in the 
economic activities. Given the virulent nature of the pandemic situation, the carrying value of 

stthe company's Investments as at 31  March, 2020, have been effected by the severity and 
duration of the outbreak; however the Company believes that it has taken into account all 
the possible impact of known events arising out of Covid-19 pandemic in the preparation of 
financial results resulting out of fair valuation of these investments. The Loans have also been 
subjected to impairment losses. However, the impact assessment of Covid-19 is a continuing 
process given its nature and duration. The Company will continue to monitor for any material 
changes in this regard.
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36. No amount is due or payable by any of the directors, firms, private companies in which any 
Director is a partner/director/manager or companies under the same management towards 
sundry debtors/loans and advances in the Company. Maximum amount outstanding from the 
above - Nil (Nil).

37. The company has no amount due to suppliers under the Micro, Small and Medium 
stEnterprises Development Act, 2006 as at 31  March, 2020.

st38. The Financial Statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 31  July, 
2020.

Per our report of even date annexed                    for and on behalf of the Board
for Niranjan & Narayan
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No.005899S) (T.R. Sekhar) (P.R.K. Murthy)
    Director Director
    DIN: 02943146 DIN: 02769220

(M. Niranjan)  (Sanjana Jain) (Omprakash Koyalkar)
Partner    Company Secretary Manager
Membership No. 029552 ACS: 55914

Place: Hyderabad                                        (T. Ramesh Babu)
Date : 31.07.2020                                        Chief Financial Officer
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SCHEDULE TO THE BALANCE SHEET 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2020

(Disclosure of details as required by Para 13 of Non-Banking Financial Companies Prudential 
Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007).

PARTICULARS (Rs. in Lakhs)

Liabilities

1. Loans and advances availed by the NBFC

 inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid

 (a) Debentures: Secured
    Unsecured
    (other than falling within
    the meaning of public
    deposits)

 (b) Deferred Credits

 (c) Term Loans

 (d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing

 (e) Commercial Paper

 (f) Public Deposits

 (g) Other Loans

Assets

2. Break-up of Loans and Advances including Bills

 receivables (other than those included in (4) Below)

 (a) Secured

 (b) Unsecured

3. Break-up of Leased Assets and stock on hire

 and other assets counting towards AFC 
activities

 i) Lease assets including lease rentals under

  sundry debtors:

  (a) Financial Lease

  (b) Operating Lease

 ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under

  sundry debtors:

  (a) Assets on hire

  (b) Repossessed Assets

 iii) Hypothecation loans counting towards AFC

  activities

  (a) Loans where assets have been 

   repossessed

  (b) Loans other than (a) above

 Amount

 Outstanding

--

--

--

--

--

--

--

--

Amount 

Overdue

--

--

--

--

--

--

--

--

Amount 

Outstanding

 --

104.38

NIL

NIL

NIL
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4. Break up of investments :
 Current investments:
 1. Quoted
  i) Shares (a) Equity
    (b) Preference
  ii) Debentures and Bonds
  iii) Units of Mutual Funds
  iv) Government securities
  v) Others (please specify)

 2. Unquoted
  (i) Shares (a) Equity
    (b) Preference
  (ii) Debentures and Bonds
  (iii) Units of Mutual Funds
  (iv) Government securities
  (v) Others (please specify)

 Long Term Investments :
 1. Quoted
  (i) Shares (a) Equity
    (b) Preference
  ii) Debentures and Bonds
  iii) Units of Mutual Funds
  iv) Government securities
  v) Others (please specify)
 2. Unquoted
  (i) Shares (a) Equity
    (b) Preference
  ii) Debentures and Bonds
  iii) Units of Mutual Funds
  iv) Government securities
  v) Others (please specify)

5. Borrower group-wise classification of assets
 financed as in (2) and (3) above.
 Category
 1. Related Parties
  (a) Subsidiaries
  (b) Companies in the same group
  (c) Other related Parties
 2. Other than related parties
  Total

--
--
--
--
--
--

--
--
--
--

276.56

--

--

28.38

--
--

2.25
--

--

--

--
--

Amount (net of provisions)

Secured Unsecured Total

-- -- --

-- -- --

-- 67.66 67.66

-- 67.66 67.66

-- -- --

--
--
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6. Investor group wise classification of all
 investments in shares and
 securities (both quoted and unquoted)

 Category
 1. Related Parties
    (a) Subsidiaries
    (b) Companies in 
          the same group
    (c) Other related 
         Parties
 2. Other than related parties
  Total

7. Other Information
 Particulars
 i) Gross Non-performing Assets
    a) Related Parties
    b) Other than
        related Parties
 ii) Net Non-performing Assets
    a) Related Parties
    b) Other than 
         related parties
 iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

Market Value/
Break up or fair 
value or NAV

Book value
(net of 

Provisions)

-- --

-- --

-- --

307.19 307.19

307.19 307.19

--

29.19

 

Nil

Nil

for Niranjan & Narayan
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No.005899S) (T.R. Sekhar) (P.R.K. Murthy)
    Director Director
    DIN: 02943146 DIN: 02769220

(M. Niranjan)  (Sanjana Jain) (Omprakash Koyalkar)
Partner    Company Secretary Manager
Membership No. 029552 ACS: 55914

Place: Hyderabad                                        (T. Ramesh Babu)
Date : 31.07.2020                                        Chief Financial Officer

Per our report of even date annexed                   for and on behalf of the Board
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